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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are engaged in the business of
sourcing, importing, wholesaling, processing, packaging,
marketing and distribution of rice, securities investment,
property investment and investment holding.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2005 and adopted by the Group with effect
from 1st April, 2005. The application of the new HKFRSs
has resulted in changes to the Group's accounting policies.
Summary of the changes in accounting policies which
have significant impacts on the Group’s financial
statements are summarized as follows.

Owner-occupied Leasehold Interest in Land (HKAS 17
“Leases”)

In prior years, owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings
were included in property, plant and equipment and stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and
impairment loss. Certain of the Group's leasehold land
and buildings had taken advantage of the transitional relief
provided by the predecessor of HKFRSs, the Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP") No.17
“Property, Plant and Equipment” issued by HKICPA, to
state at their revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation. Surplus arising from
revaluation of these land and buildings was credited to
the land and buildings revaluation reserve.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Owner-occupied Leasehold Interest in Land (HKAS 17
“Leases”) (Continued)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 17
retrospectively. Under HKAS 17 the land and buildings
elements of leasehold land and buildings are considered
separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, in which cases, the entire
leases are generally treated as finance leases. To the
extent that the allocation of the lease payments between
the land and buildings elements can be made reliably,
the leasehold interests in land are reclassified to prepaid
lease payments under operating leases, which are carried
at cost and amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. This change in accounting policy has been
applied retrospectively (see Note 3 for the financial
impact). Alternatively, where the allocation between the
land and buildings elements cannot be made reliably, the
leasehold interests in land continue to be accounted for
as property, plant and equipment.

Investment Properties (HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”)

In prior years, investment properties were stated at open
market value, with revaluation surplus or deficit credited
or charged to investment property revaluation reserve
unless the balance on this reserve was insufficient to
cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of
the revaluation decrease over the balance on the
investment property revaluation reserve was charged to
the income statement. Where a decrease had previously
been charged to the income statement and revaluation
increase subsequently arose, that increase was credited
to the income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Investment Properties (HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”) (Continued)

In the current year, the Group has adopted HKAS 40. In
accordance with the fair value model under HKAS 40, all
investment properties are stated at fair value with gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value to be
recognised directly in the income statement for the year
in which they arise.

The adoption of HKAS 40 has no effect on the Group's
results for the current or prior accounting years as the
Group's investment properties had net revaluation deficits
which had been dealt with in the income statement for
the year in which they arose. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment has been required.

Deferred Taxes related to Investment Properties (HKAS-
INT 21 “Income Taxes — recovery of revalued non-
depreciable assets”)

In prior years, deferred tax consequences in respect of
revalued investment properties were assessed on the
basis of the tax consequences that would follow from
recoveries of the carrying amounts of the properties
through sale in accordance with the former SSAP
Interpretation.

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS
Interpretation 21 which removes the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties are to be
recovered through sale. Accordingly, the deferred tax
consequences of the investment properties are now
assessed on the basis that reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manners in which the Group
expects to recover the properties at each balance sheet
date. In the absence of any specific transitional provisions
in HKAS Interpretation 21, this change in accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively (see Note 3 for the
financial impact).

RMFEREET 2ERBY
s ER (&)

REMHX (BB ERE405
[REMEL (&)

RAFEE  AEBECDRABTES
AHERIFA0SE - RIFF B G E
AIF405E 2 R FERS - ER
BMRTDBEAFEAR  MAF
BEPMEL CWEHEEEER
AFARFRZWERA »

AEBZREMEMELZFE
HEMCRELBM 2 BRFE
AtAMERA © Bt - KR EE
SR ERIFA0R Y AN K ERAF
BINGEFREZEXEATLTBTE
BB A A T E o

RRENEETBZIELEBE (B
BEFER -RBE21RHAE
B BRAEEGMZRENER
El

RUAGEEE  BREEBNEHE
AR -2 ETE&%W%%
EENRLERIBIRBEEBYE
EREEFE ZMENERMIR
EEEL T o

RAFE  AEBEEREES
STER-REE219 - THER
BREYEREENZALEME
Mo At WEMFEZBELESIE
%;“&ﬁhzl'?%lTEHHEAH*i*

ERBEMERNER 2 GET
o RBEBSFEN-2BES
21 5% 7R BT f] B B2 38K 1 1§ X
T AEEEREEBESHEEZ
WEEPER (EHPBRRZ
FERMHES) -



Notes to the Financial Statements
50 5% e 2% B

For the year ended 31st March, 2006 #HZE_-_ZEZEF=ZHA=1+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Business Combinations

Goodwill (HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” and
HKAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates”)

In prior years, goodwill arising from acquisitions prior to
1st April, 2001 was held in reserve, and goodwill arising
from acquisitions after 1st April, 2001 was capitalised
and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life.

In the current year, the Group has applied the relevant
transitional provisions in HKFRS 3. Goodwill previously
recognised in reserve has been transferred to the Group's
retained earnings on 1st April, 2005. With respect to
goodwill previously capitalised on the balance sheet, the
Group has discontinued amortising such goodwill from
1st April, 2005 onwards and goodwill will be tested for
impairment at least annually. Goodwill arising from
acquisitions after 1st April, 2005 is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, after initial
recognition. As a result of this change in accounting policy,
no amortisation of goodwill has been charged in the
current year. This new accounting policy has been applied
prospectively (see Note 3 for the financial impact).

In the current year, the Group has also applied HKAS 21
which requires goodwill to be treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at closing
rate at each balance sheet date. In prior years, goodwill
arising from acquisitions of foreign operations was
reported at historical rate at each balance sheet date. In
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions in
HKAS 21, goodwill arising from acquisitions prior to 1st
April, 2005 is treated as a non-monetary foreign currency
item of the Group. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment
has been required.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Business Combinations (Continued)

Excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost (previously known as “negative
goodwill”) (HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”)

In prior years, negative goodwill arising on acquisitions
prior to 1st April, 2001 was held in reserve, and negative
goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1st April, 2001 was
presented as a deduction from assets and released to
income based on an analysis of the circumstances from
which the balance resulted.

In accordance with HKFRS 3, any excess of the Group's
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition (“discount on acquisition”) is recognised
immediately in the income statement in the year in which
the acquisition takes place. In accordance with the
relevant transitional provisions in HKFRS 3, the Group
has derecognised and transferred all negative goodwill
balances to the Group's retained earnings on 1st April,
2005 (see Note 3 for the financial impact).

Financial Instruments (HKAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 and
the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS 39 with
respect to classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities that are within the scope of
HKAS 39.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (HKAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”) (Continued)

In prior years, the Group classified and measured its debt
and equity securities as “investment securities” or “other
investments” in accordance with former SSAP 24.
“Investment securities” were stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any, while “other investments” were
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
included in the income statement for the year.

With effect from 1st April, 2005, the Group classifies and
measures its debt and equity securities in accordance
with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial assets are
classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” "available-for-sale investments’, “loans and
receivables’, or “held-to-maturity financial assets” The
classification depends on the purposes for which the
assets are acquired. “Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” and “available-for-sale investments” are
carried at fair value, with changes in fair values recognised
in the income statement and equity respectively. “Loans
and receivables” and "held-to-maturity financial assets”
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. In accordance with HKAS 39 which does
not permit retrospective application, no comparative
figures have been restated (see Note 3 for the financial
impact on current year's profit).
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Share-based Payments (HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payments”)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 which
requires an expense to be recognised where the Group
buys goods or obtains services in exchange for shares or
rights over shares (“equity-settled transactions”), or in
exchange for other assets equivalent in value to a given
number of shares or rights over shares (“cash-settled
transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the
Group is in relation to the expensing of the fair value of
Directors’ and employees’ share options of the Company
determined at the date of grant of the share options over
the vesting period. Prior to the application of HKFRS 2,
the Group did not recognise the financial effect of these
share options until they were exercised.

The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted
on or after 1st April, 2005, if any. In accordance with the
relevant transitional provisions under HKFRS 2, the Group
has not applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted before
1st April, 2005 as all of these share options were granted
before 7th November, 2002. This new accounting policy
has no financial impact on the Group for the current or
prior years.

Changes in presentation of financial statements

Minority Interests (HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” and HKAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements”)

In prior years, minority interests were presented in the
consolidated balance sheet separately from liabilities and
as a deduction from net assets. Profit or loss shared by
minority interests was separately presented in the
consolidated income statement as a deduction before
arriving at the profit attributable to shareholders.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Changes in presentation of financial statements
(Continued)

Minority Interests (HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” and HKAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements”) (Continued)
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In the current year, in order to comply with HKAS 1 and RAFE @ BREEEE 4R
HKAS 27 minority interests are presented in the F1RRBESTENE 275 M
consolidated balance sheet as an element of total equity, sk REEH 2 VERFEER

separately from the equity attributable to the shareholders
of the Company. Profit or loss shared by minority interests
is presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the attributable results
between the minority interests and shareholders of the
Company. Comparative figures for the presentation of
minority interests in the consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated income statement have been restated
accordingly.

Share of associates’ taxation (HKAS 1 “Presentation
of Financial Statements”)

In prior years, share of associates’ taxation was presented
as a component of taxation in the income statement.
Upon adoption of HKAS 1, share of associates’ taxation
is deducted from share of results of associates as
presented in the income statement. Comparative figures
for taxation and share of results of associates as
presented in the income statement have been restated
accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE ADOPTION OF 3.
NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The financial effects of the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs, as described in Note 2, to the Group's
consolidated income statement and consolidated balance
sheet are summarised as follows:

(a)

current year and prior year

Effects on consolidated income statement for the
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(a)

REAFEREFEZRE
WEREE

Effect of adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
ROFRRREITI ERMEREEN 2 E

HKAS 16 HKAS- HKAS 32
and 17 INT 21 HKFRS 3 and 39 Total
EBEM BTEGH BRUNE FEEH
] A - H|EED EAE32
E16R 175 RBE21H £3%  Kk39% “a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BE-ZEXE
31st March, 2006 ZA=t+-HBLEE
Decrease in net unrealised gain ~ ATHEREZ X EH
on available-forsale investments Wi /F 5 2 i - - —  (21,074) (21,074)
Decrease in administrative EEER
expenses 2R D 2,375 - - - 2,375
Decrease in amortisation of BEmE LR
goodwill of associates BEZRL - - 1,873 = 1,873
(Increase)/decrease in taxation B\ (gm) ,/ wmd (408) 101 - - (307)
Net increase/(decrease) in KEZRA M/
profit for the year (RD) =8 1,967 101 1,873 (21,074) (17133)
Attributable to: EERFRERT :
Shareholders of the Company ARERR 1,967 56 1,873  (21,074) (17,178)
Minority interests DEBRE — 45 — — 45
1,967 101 1,873 (21,074) (17,133)
Increase/(decrease) in basic BREAEF 2EmM,/
earnings per share (cents) OB ) () 0.2 - 0.1 (1.6) (1.3)
Increase/(decrease) in diluted BREERF 2N,/
earnings per share (cents) ORLA) () 0.2 = 0.1 (1.6) (1.3)
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SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE ADOPTION OF

NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

3. HAHBEREEITZERM
BREEWACHERE (4)

Effects on consolidated income statement for the (a)

current year and prior year (Continued)

REAFEREFEZHS

WERzHE (B)

Effect of adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
RAFERCEICEAVBRELEN R E

HKAS 16 HKAS- HKAS 32
and 17 INT 21 HKFRS 3 and 39 Total
FEg:d FBgH FEWE BAAS:
b4l EHl-  |MEER EAEFE3R
F16R17% 2BE2UR 3% T 39%% B
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETL FETL FET FET FET
For the year ended BZ-2Z1%
31st March, 2005 ZA=t+-BLEE
Decrease in administrative EHER
expenses o 2,375 — — = 2,375
(Increase)/decrease in taxation ~ FIEZ (Em) /D (408) 168 — — (240)
Net decrease in loss for the year AFEBE 2R FE 1,967 168 — = 2,135
Attributable to: EHAFEER:
Shareholders of the Company ARAIRE 1,967 93 — — 2,060
Minority interests DR R ER — 75 — = 75
1,967 168 — — 2,135
Decrease in basic loss FREAEE
per share (cents) ZE A () 0.1 — — — 0.1
Decrease in diluted loss BREEER
per share (cents) 2R () NATER NATER NATER NATER NATHER




SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE ADOPTION OF
NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

current year and prior year

Effects on consolidated balance sheet for the

3. BRMWBREBIT2EREY
BRERAZHERE (&)

(b)

REAFEREFEZHS

EERBERZVE

Effect of adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
RAFRRREICERNBREEA 2 E

HKAS 16 HKAS- HKAS 32
and 17 INT 21 HKFRS 3 and 39 Total
EBEed THEEw BHEUE FBEEH
2 A - HEED ERE32
F16R17H RBE21H $3% K39 wm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FET FET
As at 31st March, 2006 R-BEXRE
=A=+-H
Increase/(decrease) in assets BEZEN/(HD)
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEKSREE (72,694) = = —  (72,694)
Interests in associates BENAER - - 1,873 = 1,873
Available-for-sale investments AHERE - — — 143,048 143,048
Investments in securities BHEE - - —  (233,091) (233,091)
Advances to investee companies JEUUIRE N Al FE - - —  (17599)  (17,599)
Prepaid lease payments BNRERE 20,370 - - - 20,370
Financial assets at fair value REZRRLFE
through profit or loss REZEBEE - - — 107642 107,642
(52,324) - 1,873 - (50,451)
Decrease in liabilities BEZRD
Deferred tax liabilities EERBAG 8,830 483 - - 9,313
(43,494) 483 1,873 — (41,138)
Increase/(decrease) in equity X 2 (F D)
Goodwill reserve BERKE - - 4,167 = 4,167
Land and buildings THREF
revaluation reserve EhFEE (67,976) - - - (67,976)
Investments revaluation reserve R E &L E - — = 21,074 21,074
Retained earnings REBRF 24,482 266 (2,294)  (21,074) 1,380
(43,494) 266 1,873 - (41,355)
Minority interests DEMRE — 217 — — 217
(43,494) 483 1,873 - (41,138)
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SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE ADOPTION OF 3.
NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Effects on consolidated balance sheet for the

current year and prior year (Continued)

(b)

BRAFERGET2EEBY
BREEWACHERE (4)

REAFEREFEZHS
EERERZVE ()

Effect of adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

FRMBREE L RRAMBRELACTE

HKAS 16 HKAS- HKAS 32
and 17 INT 21 HKFRS 3 and 39 Total
FEgH ABEGH FEWE FAEGH
Pl ERI-  WEER EAFE3R2
F16R1TH REE21% F3%  K39% ok
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETL FET FET FET FET
As at 31st March, 2005 R-ZZHF=A
=+-H
Increase/(decrease) in assets  BE &M,/ (BD)
Property, plant and equipment M BEKSEREHE (75,162) — — —  (75,162)
Prepaid lease payments BNHENE 20,463 — — = 20,463
(54,699) = = = (54,699)
Decrease in liabilities SEBZRY
Deferred tax liabilities ERFIEER 9,238 382 — — 9,620
(45,461) 382 — — (45,079)
Increase/(decrease) in equity  HEHE 2,/ (FD)
Land and buildings revaluation THREF
reserve BhHEE (67,976) — — —  (67976)
Retained earnings RB AT 22,515 210 = = 22,725
(45,461) 210 — = (45,251)
Minority interests LERREE R — 172 — = 172
(45,461) 382 — — (45,079)




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation
of investment properties, available-for-sale investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the new HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses have been eliminated on consolidation.

Business Combinations

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FEESTHEREBE (&)

(Continued)

Business Combinations(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

As mentioned in Note 2 to the financial statements,
goodwill previously recognised in reserve has been
transferred to the Group’s retained earnings on 1st April,
2005. With respect to goodwill previously capitalised on
the balance sheet, the Group has discontinued amortising
such goodwill from 1st April, 2005 onwards and goodwill
will be tested for impairment at least annually. Goodwill
arising from acquisitions after 1st April, 2005 is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, after
initial recognition.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent years.

Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary
is presented separately in the balance sheet. Capitalised
goodwill arising on acquisition of associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method, is included in the
cost of the investment of the relevant associate.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate,
the attributable amount of goodwill previously capitalised
is included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost (previously known as
“negative goodwill”)

A discount on acquisition arising on acquisition of
subsidiary or associate represents the excess of the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree'’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of the business combination. Discount on
acquisition is recognised immediately in the income
statement in the year in which the acquisition takes place.

As mentioned in Note 2 above, all negative goodwill as at
1st April, 2005 has been derecognised with a
corresponding adjustment to the Group’'s retained
earnings.

Revenue recognition

(i) Sales of goods are recognised as revenue when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

(i)  Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease terms.

(iii)  Revenue arising on the sale of financial instruments
is recognised on a trade-date basis.

(iv) Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group's rights to receive payment have
been established.

(v) Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the Group's financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and of changes in equity of the associate, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group's share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the relevant associate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in
the year in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:
Land and buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
land lease term and 4%
Factory premises in elsewhere in
the People's Republic of China

(the "PRC") 2% — 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5% — 20%
Plant and machinery 5% — 33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 12% — 33%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
income statement.

Prepaid lease payments

The up-front prepayments paid for the leasehold land are
stated at cost and charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another accounting standard, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that accounting standard.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another accounting standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase under that accounting
standard.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential, any rental income
being negotiated at arm’s length. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured using
the fair value model. Unrealised gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the year in which they arise.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on

the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group's financial assets are classified as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’, “available-for-
sale investments” and “loans and receivables” Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss includes
investments held for trading purpose and investments
designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivatives that are either designated as available-for-sale
investments or not classified as any of the other
categories under the financial assets classification. Loans
and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
investments are carried at fair value, with changes in fair
values recognised in the income statement and equity
respectively. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed
through the income statement in subsequent years.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale debt investments
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value
of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
Impairment losses on loans and receivables are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the loans and
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the loans and receivables at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed the amortised
cost that would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised or derecognised on a trade date basis and
initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the assets have expired or when the financial assets have
been transferred, and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the aggregate of the consideration received and gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in the income statement for the year.

Financial liabilities include trade and other loan payables
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity are recorded in its
functional currency at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise, except for exchange differences arising on a
monetary item that forms part of the Group's net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financials statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity. Such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to the income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as expenses as they fall due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Operating leases

Rental expenses payable under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the relevant lease terms.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the balance
sheet represent cash on hand, cash and time deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. For the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents which have
short-term maturity of generally within three months upon
acquisition, together with bank overdrafts and bank loans,
if any, which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management, are included as
components of cash and cash equivalents as presented
in the consolidated cash flow statement.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and bank loans. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Management manages and monitors these exposures
closely to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly
arises from the net cash flow and the net working capital
translation of its PRC, Thailand and Malaysia subsidiaries
and associates. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
Management monitors foreign exchange exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. The exposure to the credit risk is
closely monitored on an ongoing basis by established
credit policies. There is no significant credit risk within
the Group.

Financial instruments price risk

The Group's financial instruments price risk is primarily
attributable to available-for-sale investments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.
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TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amounts received and
receivable for rice sold to outside customers less returns
and allowances, sales proceeds from securities
investment and rental income from investment properties
for the year, and is analysed as follows:

EXH

LEBEERAFERNHERXK
T EEE 2B W R R KRR
(BAOBEERFM) =%%<Txéf
ZHTRHIE - WRREMR ZHE
TWA - ADWWT :

THE GROUP
A& HE
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Rice sales BRAKEE 589,537 683,301
Securities investment FBEKRE 62,121 46,020
Rental income from investment KEYEZ

properties Ha A 2,453 2,254
654,111 731,575

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS ¥Rz BEER

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into four operating divisions, namely rice
operation, securities investment, property investment and
corporate and others. These divisions are the basis on
which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Rice operation — sourcing, importing, wholesaling, processing,
packaging, marketing and distribution of

rice
Securities investment — investments in equity and debt
securities
Property investment — property investment and development
Corporate and others — corporate income and expenses and other
investments

X ik
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7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 7. EBR#EzoBEER (&)
(Continued)
Business segments (Continued) ¥¥28 (&)
Segment information about these businesses is presented ERREEHB 2 BRERZ5M
below: K
Income statement for the year ended 31st March, 2006 BE-_ZZAXF=A=+—HL
FEzWRHEE
Rice Securities Property Corporate

operation investment investment and others Consolidated
rER

RKEHR EHRE NERE Hit %% GEKRE

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000

FER FER FER FER FER

TURNOVER E L]
External sales HINEE 589,537 62,121 2,453 = 654,111
RESULT ES
Segment results G ES 65,369 18,318 5,423 13,064 102,174
Finance costs BB K (126)
Share of results of associates ~ Z(hE 2 N A1 £ & (3,343) = (1,074) 2,643 (1,774)
Gain/(loss) on disposal HEBEDNEL

of associates W/ (B18) = = (1,701) 13,794 12,093
Profit before taxation B AR Al 112,367
Taxation ME (21,376)
Profit for the year REERA 90,991
Attributable to: BHAEERT
Shareholders of the Company A4 AR R 88,998
Minority interests DERE R = 1,993

90,991



BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL

(Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Balance sheet at 31st March, 2006

ASSETS
Segment assets
Interests in associates

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

#E
HRAE
BEATE

Other information for the year ended 31st March, 2006

Additions to property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant
and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments
Surplus on revaluation of
investment properties
Net unrealised gain on
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Bad debts written off

RENE BREKE
pES:

nE - BEER
B

TERRH

BNHEERR

2

ERRENE
ZEB&H

REGREATEHRER
LEBEEIRER

W& ER
SRR

SEGMENTS 7.
Rice Securities
operation  investment
RKEHK BERE
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FERL
193,551 245,117
18,732 -
29,048 8,561
Rice Securities
operation investment
RAKER EHRE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FER FEL
2,852 -
7472 -
494 =
- 19,098
m -

EBRtEz2EER (&)

EBRo®(E)

R-BEXE=ZA=1+—HZE

EB8EX
Property Corporate
investment  and others Consolidated
TER
WERE Hi % RERE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET
115,770 313,082 867,520
19,285 125,734 163,751
1,031,271
16,105 2,002 55,716
45,461
101,177
BE-EZEARE=ZA=+—HI1
FEzZHMER
Property Corporate
investment  and others Consolidated
t¥R
NERE Hi % SERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FER FEx FET
11,256 274 14,382
1,371 75 8,918
2 - 496
4,270 - 4,270
- - 19,098
- - m
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7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 7. ¥BR#EHIOEER (&)
(Continued)
Business segments (Continued) ¥¥28 (&)
Income statement for the year ended 31st March, 2005, BE-_ZZHRF=A=+—HL
as restated FEzW=ZK® (BE)
Rice Securities Property Corporate
operation  investment  investment and others  Consolidated
rER
RRER BHRE MERE Hin %% RERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETL FETL FETL FETL FETL
TURNOVER EXE
External sales HOMAE 683,301 46,020 2,254 — 731,675
RESULT ES
Segment results PEER 86,551 (66,316) 19,483 4,537 44,255
Finance costs B A (635)
Share of results of associates BB 2 N A ¥4 (4,885) — (920) (43) (5,848)
Loss on disposal of an associate & —fH# & A5 ZEE — — (2,465) — (2,465)
Amortisation of goodwill BE-RHBELR
of an associate LEE — — (474) — (474)
Loss on partial disposal HE—RBE QNG
of an associate Ba B8 — — — (19,210) (19,210)
Profit before taxation B 4 A1 A 15,623
Taxation I (19,155)
Loss for the year AEEER (3,532)
Attributable to: EEAEEER:
Shareholders of the Company A&7 A% 3R (6,280)
Minority interests DERRE = 2,748

(3,632)



BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 7. ¥¥RitEHscBEER (&)

(Continued)
Business segments (Continued) ¥¥58 (&)
Balance sheet at 31st March, 2005, as restated R-ZZEZERF=A=+—H2ZE
EEER(KRE)
Rice Securities Property Corporate
operation  investment  investment and others  Consolidated
rER
RAER FHHE NERE it % FakE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets AEEE 206,268 207,022 101,093 361,812 876,195
Interests in associates BENRER 17263 - 25,024 51,089 93,376
Consolidated total assets HRBAE 969,571
LIABILITIES a8
Segment liabilities NEEE 30,871 — 15,718 27,145 73,734
Unallocated corporate liabilities *2 8z t286F 48,655

Consolidated total liabilities mAEBAf 122,389
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7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 7.
(Continued)

RERMHzBEN (&)

E¥2E (E)

Business segments (Continued)

Other information for the year ended 31st March, 2005, BE-_ZZHRF=A=+—HL

as restated FEZHMER (RES)
Rice Securities Property Corporate
operation  investment  investment and others  Consolidated
TrER
RAKEH EFHRE NMERE Hib %% GAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FAT FAEL FAT FAET
Additions to property, plant RENE BEHS
and equipment PET:] 4,502 — 9 = 4,51
Depreciation and amortisation ~ ¥)% » FiE %
of property, plant and REfE
equipment NEREH 7,840 — 856 8 8,704
Amortisation of prepaid BRNHEREZ
lease payments i 494 — — — 494
Release of negative goodwill — #2 RIKE—/H
arising from acquisition WEARMESZ
of a subsidiary BREE — — — 579 579
Amortisation of goodwill BE-BBHELRL
of an associate GES — — 474 — 474
Surplus on revaluation ERRENEL
of investment properties B - - 3,600 — 3,600
Net unrealised loss on BHRECRER
investments in securities BEFE — 62,906 — — 62,906
Gain on disposal of an HE-BEREMEL
investment property ez = — 890 = 890
Bad debts written off BRI 1,368 — — — 1,368




BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong,
elsewhere in the PRC and other regions.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
sales by location of markets, irrespective of the origin of
the goods/services:

¥Rz BER (&)

e 35 5

AREBERES - PREZEMMEER
A R H A 3 [ 4R SR A o

REBZMEMH Tt R E m
SR ZREM) B 2EES
WamT :

Turnover by
geographical markets

B HIEE S 2 E £

2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAEIT

Hong Kong BB 571,493 620,904
Elsewhere in the PRC B E i@ 77,768 100,005
Others Hfib b & 4,850 10,666
654,111 731,575

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets and additions to property, plant and

T RIZEEME RN SE D
ZOBEEREERRNEDE

equipment, analysed by the geographical areas in which BEWRREE DI -
the assets are located:
Carrying amount of Additions to property
segment assets plant and equipment
NEWE
SEEERMEE BEHERSZE
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T
(As restated)
(& E5)
Hong Kong EE 584,162 603,537 2,370 2,657
Elsewhere in the PRC B 2 H A i [ 278,472 215,468 12,012 1,854
Others H 3 [@ 168,637 150,566 - —
1,031,271 969,571 14,382 4,511
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OTHER INCOME 8. HtkA
THE GROUP
AEH
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Interest income on: FEWA -
— Bank deposits — IRITHER 5,816 2,284
— Available-forsale investments — AJHEERER
and financial assets at 18 a8 AR AR
fair value through profit or ~FEEEE
loss/investments LERMEE
in securities S BHEE 9,053 4,931
— Others — Hh 7,797 5,572
22,666 12,787
Dividend from available-for-sale AEERE
investments/investments BEEBEZ
in securities: REWA -
— Listed investments — FHAHERE EHFRKRE 1,670 1,750
— Unlisted investment — FLEMAEERE BHEE 20 —
Gain on disposal of HEITHERE
available-for-sale investments 2 W 5,314 —
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEHKSE R
plant and equipment Btz W 125 —
Sundry income I A 1,580 3,919
Release of negative goodwill o AW
arising from acquisition —EWNE R A
of a subsidiary MELEZEHE - 579
Gain on disposal of an HE—HREWHE
investment property 2 Was - 890
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s — MW B ARz WS - 9
Net foreign exchange gains I 5 A - 641
31,375 20,575




PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

9. KERA

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
(As restated)
(FE=E31)
The Group's profit from operations REE K& R
has been arrived at after Bk (GEA) ¢
charging/(crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A &
Current year KEE 287 268
Overprovision in prior years TFEEBRBEEE (5) (13)
282 255
Depreciation and amortisation of Y BMEEBEREZE
property, plant and equipment 2 E K 8,918 8,704
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &~ 70 & I8 ~ # 85 496 494
Operating lease rentals in respect EEMEYE
of rented premises He&ZH 2,782 2,647
Bad debts written off 122 B 1 85 111 1,368
Rental income from investment HEMEZHSBA - Ak
properties, net of outgoings of B 147000/ T
HK$147000 (2005: HK$161,000) —ZEETRF : 161,0008 L) (2,306) (2,093)
Cost of inventories recognised EmRAEAX
as expense ZHFEEKA 353,846 419,481
Loss on disposal/written off of TEMEME - BE
property, plant and equipment HeERFEEE - 261
Realised loss on investments in securities &5 & 2 B #1HEE - 13,334
Staff costs, including Directors’ B ITRA
emoluments (note 33) and BEEEWE (H7233)
retirement benefits schemes FAR K AE I
contributions (note 38) ETEI R (A7 77 38) 68,732 63,903
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BT #E R A
THE GROUP
REE
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Interests on bank loans and AR TFHEHEE
overdrafts: RITEREBELZZFE :
Wholly repayable within five years ARAFANBHESR 126 615
Not wholly repayable within five years BERAFANREHEE - 20
126 635
11. TAXATION 11. H1E
THE GROUP
r&EH
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
(As restated)
(BE7)
Current tax: BT IE -
Hong Kong BB 20,768 19,131
Other regions in the PRC A H i (R 182 58
20,950 19,184
Under/(over)provision in prior years: AEEBRETR(BEREE) :
Hong Kong BB 455 (25)
Other regions in the PRC A H i (R (27) 37
428 12
Deferred tax (note 26) EIEFL IR (M 3F26) (2) (41)

Taxation attributable to the Company A2 &) & H i B A 7]
and its subsidiaries &G B 18 21,376 19,155




1.

TAXATION (Continued) 11.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in other regions in the PRC is calculated
in accordance with the relevant laws of the PRC.

Share of associates’ taxation for the year of HK$544,000
(2005: HK$419,000) is included in share of results of
associates for the year.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit per the consolidated income statement as follows:

BIE (&)

EBFIEB BB AFE G E
RBENIR17 5% E -

7o B E AR A A 2 BIE TR
R EABANIHE -

REFEZEEHMENREEER
BAFE 2B EHE QR 2HIE
544,000 T (Z & R F :
419,000 7T) °

REFZRBAS HEGS KSR
g MEERWT

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
(As restated)
(FE=E31)
Profit before taxation B 75 A g 112,367 15,623
Tax at the domestic income tax rate BARMTERHE175%TE
of 17.56% (Note) 2 (Kfat) 19,664 2,734
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A 1% 2 &
for tax purpose 2B RE 6,718 14,681
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAERB Z WA
tax purpose B RE (7,721) (8,253)
Underprovision in respect of prior years £ EE&EET & 428 12
Tax effect of utilisation of T FRER
tax losses/deferred tax assets ZHIEEBE BEERELE
not previously recognised 2B RE (721) (1,250)
Tax effect of tax losses/deferred KERZTIEERRELEHE
tax assets not recognised BEZHBEE 751 10,171
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FENBARMBZHG
PRC subsidiaries Bl (9) (43)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries £ £ fth &) A 1 & 48 & 2 I B
operating in other jurisdictions ARAIEAZ TRAKE s & 70 87
Tax effect of share of results of associates #{HH & AR EBE 2 HIBEFE 310 1,023
Others Hith 1,886 (7)
Taxation for the year REFEHRIEA 21,376 19,155
Note: Hiaz -

The domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of
the Group is substantially based is used.

AEBRAEIEEBHEZ VAR
BZERABR -
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12. DIVIDENDS

12. BE
(a) Dividends attributable to the year: (a) BRAFEZRE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim dividend paid of 1.25 cents & K 3 A HAIR & &A% 1.2510 -
per share on 1,306,906,460 shares Bz RS %5(1 306,906,4600% 5+ &
(2005: 1.25 cents per share on ZETRF REBRKR1.2500
1,306,026,460 shares) 1218 A% 80 1,306,026,460/% 5T &) 16,336 16,325
Final dividend proposed of R 3 R B AR B
1.25 cents per share on =R 1.25600 -
1,306,906,460 shares ¥ 48 % 201,306,906,4600% 51 &
(2005: 1.25 cents per share (ZZZARF : RSRK1.2510 -
on 1,306,906,460 shares) 1218 A% 80 1,306,906,460/% 5T &) 16,336 16,336
Adjustment of final dividend BRI AT (50 3R B AR #E
for prior year resulting from mAREF
exercise of share options REAE B — 5
32,672 32,666
The final dividend of 1.25 cents per share for the EZERRRERE_TTRF
year ended 31st March, 2006 has been proposed by —A=+t—BLFEZRBPEE
the Directors and is subject to approval by the SR%1.2500 - HAFRERER

shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. This final dividend proposed after the
balance sheet date has not been recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date.

BREREFAE EHE - WEE R
BRI RHARBIRAENGEE
HRERSARE -



12. DIVIDENDS (Continued) 12. RE (&)

(b) Dividends approved and paid during the year: b) REAFEHEREMNZEK
8

2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Final dividend in respect of the RAREEHEE

previous financial year, MENBR

approved and paid during the year,  FBIIFE 2 K EHARR &

of 1.25 cents per share on FR1.2500 - R

1,306,906,460 shares 1,306,906,4600% 5T &

(2005: 1.25 cents per share ZETRF  HF&1.250L

on 1,302,301,460 shares) &% 281,302,301,460/% 51 &) 16,336 16,279
Interim dividend in respect of AN E H#E

the current financial year, ME~BR

approved and paid during the year, AR EE 2 R E

of 1.25 cents per share on FRE1.2500 ¢ LA E

1,306,906,460 shares 1,306,906,4600% 5t &

(2005: 1.25 cents per share ZZETRF  H&1.2500 ¢

on 1,306,026,460 shares) % I 811,306,026,460/% 51 &) 16,336 16,325

32,672 32,604
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13.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss)

per share is based on the following data:

sRERN (BE)

BRERREFERF, (BE) T
BTIERE -

2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&ET
(As restated)
(E=E5)
Earnings/(loss) for the purposes of ATEBREARALEE
both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) aH,/ (1) 2z
per share AR, (Ei8) 88,998 (6,280)
2006 2005

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of shares
for the purpose of basic
earnings/(loss) per share

Effect of dilutive potential shares
— Options

BiDEA :

HESREARF,
(B518) 2 M 15
204 F 45 38

AEEEEETE KRN
— WA E

1,306,906,460 1,303,882,638

15,503,217

Weighted average number of shares
for the purpose of diluted earnings
per share

HESREERFY
B 15 e
T

1,322,409,677

Diluted loss per share for last year had not been presented

as the conversion of potential ordinary shares to ordinary

shares would have anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss

per share.

R A RERTZEBRE RS
BABEHERERNERERR
BENE  MARBEINEFEZ
BREEFEES -



13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

The effects of the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs, as described in Note 2, to both basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share are summarised as follows:

Impact on basic
earnings/(loss)

13. BRER(HR) (@)

ERANFTIE RAHERT 2 B A MW
SR (M2 HERE
AREERTF, (BE) 22N
™

Impact on diluted
earnings/(loss)

per share per share
REREXR RER®E
BA (BB 2o B (BR) 2%
2006 2005 2006 2005
cents cents cents cents
fil il il il
Amount before adjustments  FE A 2 HE 8.1 (0.6) 8.0 N/ATEHM
Adjustments arising from R P R AN 3738 R A8 ET
adoption of the new and Z BB SRS £
revised HKFRSs (see note 3)  Z #A% (G H1:£3) (1.3) 0.1 (1.3) N/ATE R
As reported/restated MEF I ED 6.8 (0.5) 6.7 N/ATiE A
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BEBBRIZE
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 BE-ZZXF=A=1+—HL
FE
Factory
premises in  Furniture, Motor

Land and elsewhere fixtures and  Plant and vehicles
buildings in the PRC equipment machinery and vessels Total
G B Bz
i HitE RE e RE
kgF BENE &S] k&t kg @i
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEn T#Er T#Er TEn TEx

THE GROUP rEE
cOST B
At 1st April, 2005 N-_ETRFENA—A
As previously reported &R 184,393 55,038 27603 134,886 11614 413,534
Prior period adjustments FIEEERS (104,149) (5,213) - - - (109,362)
As restated gE5 80,244 49,825 27603 134,886 11,614 304,172
Additions HE 4,438 = 7213 1,308 1,363 14,382
Disposals/written off HE/HEH - - (243) (254) (1,491) (1,988)
Exchange rate adjustments ERAR - 235 89 385 53 762
At 31st March, 2006 RZZTAF=A=1+—-H 84,682 50,060 34,722 136,325 11,539 317328

DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION #& - ## kK
AND IMPAIRMENT HE

At 1st April, 2005 RZZZREMA—A

As previously reported BRI 64,403 36,956 23,747 118,712 7463 251,281

Prior period adjustment FIEECR (33,061) (1,139) - - — (34,200)

As restated asy 31,342 35,817 23,747 118,712 7463 217,081
Provided for the year rEERE 2,737 563 1,693 2,238 1,687 8,918
Eliminated on disposals/ REE /MR

written off i - - (223) (242) (1,382) (1,847)
Exchange rate adjustments ERHE - 146 40 259 24 469
At 31st March, 2006 WZEERE=F=1-0 34,079 36,526 25257 120,967 7792 224,621
NET BOOK VALUES RERE

At 31st March, 2006 RZZERE=A=1—H 50,603 13,534 9,465 15,358 3,741 92,707




For the year ended 31st March, 2005

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14. V¥ - BEKBRRE &)

BE-—ZEERHF=A=t+—H01

FE
Factory
premises in - Furniture, Motor
Land and  elsewhere fixtures and  Plant and vehicles
buildings  inthe PRC  equipment  machinery and vessels Total
i i KR
T EnitE kE ke nE
kEF BENF &S B I8k @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FAT FET FET TAT
THE GROUP %8
COST KA
At 1st April, 2004 RZZTMEMA—H
As previously reported &R 184,393 55,038 27,348 134,153 10,160 411,092
Prior period adjustments AHRE (104,149) (5,213) — — — (109,362
As restated BEj| 80,244 49,825 27,348 134,153 10,160 301,730
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—HHBAT — — 155 = 370 525
Additions NE — — 909 1,497 2,105 4.5M
Disposals/written off e/ — - (809) (764) (1,021) (2,594)
At 31st March, 2005, R-ZZLE
as restated SAZT-B(&E35) 80244 49,825 27603 134,886 11,614 304,172
DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION # & * ## &
AND IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1st April, 2004 RZZTMEMA—H
As previously reported BRI 58,963 36,329 22,800 116,830 6,347 241,269
Prior period adjustment Al B (30,298) (1,033 — — — (31,331)
As restated K& 28,665 35,296 22,800 116,830 6,347 209,938
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—HHBAT — — 92 = 299 391
Provided for the year, as restated R4 [ # & (A E3) 2,677 521 1,444 2,468 1,594 8,704
Eliminated on disposalsfwritten off 1 {1 & /i 3555 & - - (589) (586) (777) (1,952)
At 31st March, 2005, R-ZZLE
as restated SAST-H(EES) 31,342 35,817 23747 118,712 7463 217081
NET BOOK VALUES RERE
At 31st March, 2005, RZZZTHE
as restated SR=T+-H(EEF]) 48,902 14,008 3,856 16,174 4,151 87091
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15.

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. ¥ BEBBRZE (&)
The net book value of properties shown above comprises: it EERFESE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
(As restated)
(&Z&E7)
Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong: IR &E 2 T3 RIEF ¢
Held under long lease NERHERZFE 11,188 11,5639
Held under medium-term lease R EIE RS 11,556 11,972
Freehold land and buildings situated MNREEAIMNEE 2
outside Hong Kong KAERETHRIEF 3,907 3,994
Building situated in Hong Kong URBEBZEF 19,573 21,397
Building situated outside Hong Kong NRBEB NN R 2 BF 4,379 —
Factory premises situated L A& & BA SN
outside Hong Kong: ZHEME
Held under medium-term lease R ERES 13,534 14,008
64,137 62,910
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
THE GROUP
AEHE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Balance at beginning of year REY 2 &k 43,630 50,030
Disposal k== — (10,000)
Surplus on revaluation HHZ B 4,270 3,600
Balance at end of year RER 2 &R 47,900 43,630

The investment properties were revalued at 31st March,

2006 on an open market value basis by Dudley Surveyors

Limited, independent Chartered Surveyors. The revaluation
surplus of HK$4,270,000 (2005: HK$3,600,000) has been
credited to the consolidated income statement.

WEBYE Z HERIKBBLE T
B EEMEF T EM AR A FE
—EERF=ZA=+—B2Zz2AH
TETAEZEFGHIIEL - EEY
ERTEL ZR#4,270,0008 T
(ZZ=ZAHF : 3,600,0005% 70)
EREER=ER AT A °



15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Dudley Surveyors Limited is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties.

All of the Group’s investment properties are held for
renting out under operating leases.

The analysis of the Group’s investment properties is as

15. BEWE (&)

BMITREMERARRERA
BREgER Y — YRARMM
HZEUMEEHEETHAGESE
B RO HER - ZEEHR
EEERGEER - 2Z8UME
ARBZMGEIBEET -

AEEMBRENEIBANE
ERHBDL -

AEBMZREMR 2 OHWMT

follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Situated in Hong Kong: URES :
Held under long lease NRHBE®SE 18,400 17,300
Held under medium-term lease NP HEREER 26,200 23,400
Situated outside Hong Kong: UREAAINDE
Held under medium-term lease AR EIE s E 3,300 2,930
47,900 43,630

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16. B2 R ERE

THE COMPANY

VNN
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH#ET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRGD - RKNAE 280,229 280,229
Advances to subsidiaries Gl ENGIE 625,817 659,745
906,046 939,974

In the opinion of the Directors, advances to subsidiaries
are not repayable in the coming twelve months.

EXZRA - BUNMBLRRFRER
ARARE+ _ERAEE -
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. B A BREZE (&)

ARAREEAFZA=+—

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at

31st March, 2006 are as follows:

BZTEMBARZFHBHET

Proportion

of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid up share capital held

Name of subsidiary operation share capital by the Group Principal activities
rEERE
WEARER H/ E%h % BERIRBRRA BRTRAEGLE TEEE
2006 2005
Aland Limited Hong Kong/PRC 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERAF &/ HE HK$1 each NERE
ghEEIET EBRAR
Beef Bowl Limited Hong Kong 20,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
EHERREEERAR Bk of HK$10 each REER
BREE10BTLERER
20,000f%
Better Choice Investments British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited AERNES BE1ZETZERRIKR REER
Better Star Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong HEI1ETZERRIR NERE
EBRAHE/EB
Billion Trade Development Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% — Investment
Limited BB HK$1 RE
KEERERAT AEIET2ERRIR
City Court Properties Limited British Virgin Islands/ 21 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong of US$1 each ®E R
AERRBE/BE BREEIETZ
TEk21R
Citydragon Resources Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERAEE HEIEXTZ SRR IR REER
Cost Logistics Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

ABRKES

HEIXTZERBRIR

REER



16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEATEH

Golden Fidelity Holdings
Limited
eFEEFRAR

Golden Resources China
(Group) Limited
R (KB)BERAH

Golden Resources
Development Limited

ERARERAA

Golden Resources Holdings
Limited

Golden Resources Rice
Industries Limited

Golden Resources Rice
Trading Limited
ERERBRAT

Place of
incorporation/
operation

i/ ExmE

Hong Kong
N

Samoa

BED

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
EBEAAS

British Virgin Islands
RERLES

Hong Kong
B

Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

ERTRAZRE

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
BREE1ETZ ERRR

1 ordinary share of
US$1
HEIXT ERRIR

2,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares*
of HK$1 each and
2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
BREB1ETLERTE
TR {7*2,000,0008
rEBREGIETL
LiakkR

21,268 ordinary
shares of US$1 each
BREE1ZT ERR
21,2681

1,000 ordinary
shares of US$1 each
SREBIZETL
Li@R1,0008%

260,000 ordinary
shares of HK$10 each
FREB10ET S BR
260,0008%

16. B R A #Ez= (&)

Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
share capital held

by the Group
FrEENE
BRTRAEHLLE
2006 2005
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Property holding
BENZ

Investment holding
and property holding
REBRREBENE

Overseas sourcing,
processing, packaging,
marketing, sales and
distribution of rice

RENER  RE 8%
B HERDHRK

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REER

Importing, wholesaling
and local purchasing
of rice (Registered
rice stockholder
and wholesaler)

AD - BERERMRE
R (BRRABRRA
HEH)
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. B A BREZE (&)

Proportion

of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid up share capital held

Name of subsidiary operation share capital by the Group Principal activities
FTEERE
MEARER RiLVE E5iE BRARBERE BRTRAEGILE TEEH
2006 2005
Golden Resources Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Warehouse operation
Warehouse Limited BA shares of HK$10 each MERE
ERAXERERAT GREBI0BTEER
1,000/
Goldsom Development Limited  Hong Kong 100 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
2HERBRAA Bk shares of HK$1 each REER
gREBIETLERR
100/
GR Environmental Hong Kong 3 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of logistics
Development Company £A HK$1 each services
Limited BRAEE1ETZ ERBR3K RENTERB
TRERERBRAA
Lee Loy Company Limited Hong Kong 160 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property holding
MRBERRH &b of HK$100 each BENE
BREMG100ETZ
& 0% 1608
Ng Fung Always Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Sale and distribution
hEEmARAF Bk HK$1 each of rice
gREGBIETL HERDHEAK
EER2KR
Paklink International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERTES HEIETZ ERRIKR REZR
Red Token Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1,600 ordinary shares of ~ 63.75%  63.75%  Investment holding

RBRIES

US$1 each
BREEI1ZFT ERER
1,6008%

REER



16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEATEH

Reo Developments Limited ©

Ringo Resources Limited

Shantou SEZ Golden

Resources Grain Co., Ltd.
WEBEEEERANERAR

Shantou SEZ Golden Resources
Rice Company Limited #

WBEEREERAR
AR DA

Sun Kai Yip (Shanghai) Industrial

Investment Co., Ltd.

HEE (LG IEREERAA

Treasure Box Investments
Limited
REEBRBERAT

Place of
incorporation/
operation

i/ ExmE

British Virgin
Islands/Hong Kong
ABRAME/BA

British Virgin Islands

RBRARE

PRC
Gl

PRC
Gl

PRC
Gl

Hong Kong
N

Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

ERTRAZRE

21,457 ordinary
shares of US$1 each
BREE1ZT ERR
21,4511

1 ordinary share of US$1
HEIXTZERRIR

RMB6,022,471
6,022,471 AR &

#US$4,579,314
#,579,314% 7T

#US$10,000,000
10,000,000 7.

4,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares* of
HK$1 each and
2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

BREEIVETZERTE

ZIRTER A *4,000,0008%

kEREE1ETL
TRRR

16. B R A #Ez= (&)

Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
share capital held

by the Group
FrEENE

BRTRAEHLLE
2006 2005
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
65% 65%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REER

Processing, packaging,
marketing, sales and
distribution of rice

RE - BE - HE - HE
RAHRAK

Processing, packaging,
marketing, sales and
distribution of rice

RE - BE HE - HE
RAHRK

Investment holding

REER

Sale and distribution
of rice

HERDHRA
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. B A BREZE (&)

Proportion

of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid up share capital held

Name of subsidiary operation share capital by the Group Principal activities
FTEERE
MEARER RiLVE E5iE BRARBERE BRTRAEGILE TEEH
2006 2005

Tresplain Investments Limited

British Virgin Islands/

2 ordinary shares of

100% 100%

Trade marks holding

BiEMNREERARF Hong Kong US$1 each BEAER
ABRZBE/EE BREEIETZ
ey Lol
Unique Gear Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEERAF 6 HEIATZERRIR REER
Win World Investments Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary 55% 55%  Property investment
Limited 6 shares of HK$1 each NERE
KBREFRAT FREBIETL
L@ R10,0008%
Yuen Loong & Company Hong Kong 50,000 non-voting 100% 100% Importing and re-exporting
Limited £A deferred shares* of of rice (Registered rice

RETERAR

HK$100 each and
2 ordinary shares of

stockholder)
AOREORK

HK$100 each (BREkE)
BREMGI00ETZ

EREECERRD

*50,0008 &k 8 R EE

10078 7C 2 & AR 28



16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

##

Other than Reo Developments Limited which is directly
held by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group,
practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
subsidiary or to participate in any distribution on winding-
up. The Group has been granted an option by the holders
of the deferred shares to acquire these shares at a nominal
amount.

Paid-up registered capital

Shantou SEZ Golden Resources Rice Company Limited is
a Sino-foreign joint venture.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of

the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive

length and therefore the above list only contains the

particulars of those subsidiaries which principally affect

the results or assets and liabilities of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the year.

16. B R A #Ez= (&)

##

% Reo Developments Limited
DEAAREERFAZN &
b A Bl AR R EE R
5 o

R E AR £ 3 I R AR 4
B ZERDER CEEKIR
PRB -~ RUERZ I B X B AR R
REZBE FHEZAE
FRZARE ERE - RNEH
BRARBREZ2EEESK -
REE D E EERER D 2 FF
BART - BHE  BIAR
ZFEFEAASBARERE
AR FE B Ap o

EHEMER

IBBEES B RAREERA
ARG ERERE -

EZgRRUEAREE DB
AAZAEIEHERNTE
PrIASR G R G AR B 2 KA
BERABEBERZEZNEBLR
AAlH -

BENBARNFEFAEETMND
BIZEBES
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HE-STAF=A=+—ALEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES BMeENTER
THE GROUP
REE

2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets BLhEEFE 47,552 66,276
Goodwill of associates ENE B 15,886 1,895
63,438 68,171
Advances to associates JE Ui B 2 R B SRR 100,313 25,205
163,751 93,376

Notes: Bt -

(a) Included in advances to associates is an amount of (a) MEWHEARRERENS—
approximately HK$5,644,000 (2005: HK$5,644,000) which fEE & QR 2 & T RGO EE
has been secured by certain shares of another associate. Z FRIBH)B5,644,0008 7T (=
The amount is interest-free and will not be repayable in T RF 1 5,644,00087T) °
the coming twelve months. ZEFBEAREBERBARKRK

+TZ@EARNEE -

(b)  The remaining balance of advances to associates is (b) EUWHE AR RIBZBRELEE
unsecured, interest-free and will not be repayable in coming R 2ERBARKRTZ
twelve months. &R ANEE -

(c) Investments in certain associates were in the form of (c) RETBEARZIEETIAXK

equity and loans from the Group and other shareholders
in accordance with respective percentages of equity
shareholding in these associates. Investments in the form
of loans were comparatively more significant than those
in the form of equity, so that the entire amounts were
treated as quasi-capital. Under these circumstances, losses
incurred by these associates were shared by the Group to
the extent that the losses did not exceed the aggregate of
their equity and loan investments. The relevant amounts
of share of losses of associates included in the advances
to associates are approximately HK$4,015,000 (2005:
HK$20,280,000).

SEREMRREEERZSE
BENRTBZRET S A
BARBRZ ARIEDL - UE
RIERIEL 2B @ BE AR
AEREHZRERK - Fit
EHCEHRBERSE - 7£Z
ZBERT  AEBREEET
BEERAREZREBEZ
ZEM L NTIEE o EUE L
RRAFIBBIFE LB E QRS
B2 BBEELA4,015000
ET (T T HEF
20,280,000/ 7T) °



17.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group's principal associates at 31st

March, 2006 are as follows:

Name of associate

BELNTER

Dragon Fortune Ltd.

Sirinumma Company
Limited

Siripattana Rice Co.,
Limited

Supreme Development
Company Limited*
BAHRAARAR®

Wellight Development
Limited

Form of
business
structure

HEGR

Incorporated

AL

Incorporated

B

Incorporated

AL

Incorporated

B

Incorporated

B

Place of
incorporation/
operation
it/
EXY

British Virgin
Islands

RAEBRLEE

Thailand
RE

Thailand
Eodei

Hong Kong/
Hong Kong
and the PRC

B8/
EARPE

Hong Kong
BE

Issued and
fully paid up
share capital
BRAR
BRRE

57895 ordinary
shares of US$1 each
BREBIZETL
LiMR57,8958

4,600,000 ordinary
shares of Baht 10 each
BREGBI0RHK
L ##%4,600,0008%

20,000,000 ordinary
shares of Baht 10 each
(20,000,000 ordinary
shares of Baht 6.8 each
fully paid)

BREGBI0RK
£ 7%20,000,0008%
(BREELSRHKL

17. BE QT E

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEEREERT
RAE®GLZE

2006 2005

28% 10%

40.00%

40.00%

49.00%  49.00%

% & 1R 20,000,0008%)

15,001,500 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

BREBIETL
L#7%15,001,5008%

1,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each
BREBIETL
L@k1,000%

41.16%  41.16%

3750%  3750%

Principal activities

IERHK

Investment holding

REER

Sourcing of rice

RERK

Processing, packaging,
marketing, sales and
distribution of rice

BE - BK EH-
HERAHEA

Manufacturing and sale
of plastic bags
FERHEBHE

Investment holding

REER
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17.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. BE A BIER (B)
@ Supreme Development Company Limited has a wholly- * BAZGBBBRAREE — M
owned subsidiary, Delux Arts Development Limited, which E2EWNBRAAREREERA
is incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in manufacturing A ERBERFMARZ IR E
and sale of plastic bags in Hong Kong and the PRC. BRAENEEERBEEER
£5 o
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of EEeRANBASEE 2 IHE
the particulars of all associates would be of excessive ARz BB EERNTTE
length and therefore the above list only contains the AR RS S AR B 2 A5
particulars of those associates which principally affect the BENBEEE 2N
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. A A o
The summarised financial information in respect of the REBEZBENR 2 BERER
Group's associates is set out below: 2o
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Total assets BMEE 810,055 418,420
Total liabilities wBE (627,191) (295,234)
182,864 123,186
Minority interests LR R (62,815) =
120,049 123,186
Group'’s share of net NEEZ B
assets of associates & NRIEESFE 47,552 66,276
Revenue & 591,012 563,387
Loss for the year REEBE (149) (9,849)
Group's share of results of associates REEAREE 2 #E
for the year &N R E A (1,774) (5,848)




18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

18. ATHERE

Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHERERE
2006
HK$°000
FET
Equity securities: &1 EFH -
Listed in Hong Kong REEET 83,452
Listed outside Hong Kong RBEBUINEE ETH 4,384
87,836
Unlisted kL 44,459
132,295
Debt securities: B ESH
Unlisted kL 10,753
143,048
Market value of listed securities tmESME 87,836
Quoted value of unlisted debt securities FELEMEBBHFRE 10,753

In accordance with the adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS
39 as mentioned in Note 2 to the financial statements,
investment securities and other investments amounted
to approximately HK$12,448,000 and HK$195,371,000 at
31st March, 2005 had been reclassified to appropriate
categories under HKAS 39 from 1st April, 2005 onwards.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices and the fair values of unlisted debt
securities are based on recent transaction prices. The
Group’s unlisted equity securities are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, as the range of
reasonable fair value estimates for these unlisted
investments is significant and the Directors consider that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

IR IR A B 75 3R 3R I s 2 AT 1 2 %
MEBGHENENRREES
ETERE3R - R_ZTTRF=
A=+ —B2Z2R8EFFHH
12,448,000 7T &k E fth % & 4
195,371,000 TER =T ZH
FOA—BREFDINEZRES
ETAERIZE IS M E MR -

EmED RSz A FEDRER
LWEEE  MIFLTEBES
ZRAFEDREBEROZKARERE
E o ERNEESEEMBRDERZ
BEAFEMIR2BERAESR
BEE E=2R/AREANEL
BEERTE FEAKEZF
LR B VIR AR AR - I
P B BE R R RAHRE -
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19. ADVANCES TO INVESTEE COMPANIES 19. EWREQXTRE
The balance in last year represented advances to investee EFEZEBRBUBRREEFFA
companies in terms of shareholder’s loan and had been FT{EDR 2 FEMUIS B A RIFIE « I
reclassified to available-for-sale investments from 1st April, REBERABEESETELEI2H K
2005 onwards in accordance with the adoption of HKAS FIFMPE_ETTAFHA—H
32 and HKAS 39. REFSBERITEERE -
20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 20. ERHEERE
The Group's prepaid lease payments represent prepaid REE 2 BNHEEFRIBANE R
operating lease payments in respect of leasehold land. Bz BNEERERKE -
An analysis of the net book values is as follows: FHENAEERE L REFES
W -
THE GROUP
KEH
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&ET
(As restated)
(gE5)
Leasehold land situated in Hong Kong: MR EAENE REF 2 L ¢
Held under medium-term lease NHEHRERER 16,001 16,389
Leasehold land situated outside R BB AN E AT R
Hong Kong: BAEZ i
Held under medium-term lease AREE®EE 4,045 4,074
Held under long lease NEHERFE 324 —
20,370 20,463
21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
THE GROUP
AEHE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At cost: BRAE :
Raw materials R 46,626 48,452
Finished goods BIFK 10,644 10,956
Consumable stores 5 1% )8 #E mn 6,313 4,924

63,583 64,332




23.

22. TRADE DEBTORS 22. EWE S KRIE
The Group allows an average credit period of 30-60 days AEBREZESRFRHETH
to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis 30E60R ZEFAHR - AT A
of trade debtors at the balance sheet date: EWE ZERIBEREER RIS
i
THE GROUP
KEE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30HA 25,406 28,696
31-60 days 31HE#60H 8,883 15,253
61-90 days 61H Z90H 7,633 4,933
Over 90 days HBiE90H 8,576 3,380
50,498 52,262
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade EERRERESRIAZEEE
debtors approximate their fair values. HEANFEBE °
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 23. REZRRATEEREEZS
OR LOSS & E
2006
HK$’000
FET
Equity securities: &S
— Listed in Hong Kong —REEEM 57,763
— Listed outside Hong Kong — REBLMEE ETH 8,188
65,951
Unlisted debt securities FEMEBES
— Outside Hong Kong — REB AN R 41,691
107,642
Market value of listed securities tHmESEmE 65,951
Quoted value of unlisted debt securities IEEMEBBEHFRE 41,691
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24. TRADE CREDITORS 24, ERHESZRE
The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors at the UWTARENBSREREERZ
balance sheet date: BR e 2 T
THE GROUP
AEE
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&ET
Within 30 days 30BH A 362 2,435
31-60 days 31HZ60H 565 1,477
61-90 days 61HZ=90H 253 202
Over 90 days HBiE90H 3,533 3,113
4,713 7,227
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade EERBENESEREBEZRAMA
creditors approximate their fair values. HEQNFERE -
25. BANK LOANS 25. SRITEX
THE GROUP
REE
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
The maturity of the bank loans RITERMNEE
is as follows: EABRZA T -
Within one year —F R 14,679 22,226
Less: Amount due within one year WO mEBABERAR —FR
shown under current liabilities B Dk (14,679) (22,226)
Amount due after one year R—FREPzL5E - —
Analysed as: DT -
Secured B 14,679 14,679
Unsecured 17 4 7 - 7547

14,679 22,226




25. BANK LOANS (Continued)

26.

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank loans at balance
sheet date are denominated in Renminbi.

The average cost of borrowings during the year included
bank overdrafts at prime rate (2005: prime rate) and bank
loans at weighted average interest rate of four percent
(2005: three percent) per annum.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group’s bank loans approximate their fair values.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior reporting periods.

THE GROUP

25.

26.

Accelerated tax

RITER (&)

REBREEH ZRTT
ETEZ%LA/\E%Z%@QD

B2

RAFEFHEEKRABERT
BXNREBNXR(ZTTH
F o REENR) RRTEFRMA
mEFHFERES RN ZM (=
TERF A=) EER -

ESRRAREZIRTT
mEREAFERS

BRZE

3 3T B8 B 1

AT A 5 BRI BB 1 R s
AR X BRE RS E R
HED -

AEE

Revaluation

depreciation of properties Total
MEBFIEIFE MEEMH &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FEr FET
At 1st April, 2004 RZZEZTMEMA—HR
— As originally stated — EIR3 2,361 9,645 12,006
— Prior period adjustments — BIHAFA (215) (9,645) (9,860)
— As restated — & 2,146 — 2,146
Credit to income for the year & AR E W 25 (41) — (41)
At 31st March, 2005, RZEZTREF
as restated =A=+—BH(#%E%) 2105 — 2,105
Credit to income for the year st AREE (2) — (2)
RZZETREF
At 31st March, 2006 =B=+—H 2,103 — 2,103
At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax REER @ AEEBEJAERER

losses of approximately HK$10,476,000 (2005:
HK$13,442,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

RBMzABDRARBEEENR
10,476,000 T (ZZEZT A F :
13,442,000 L) ° A KEEFETE
ZEEE B IKE R R BT A
E5 ML EERZEERR
RERIEEE o
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27. ADVANCES FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 27. BERLDEBRRERE
The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and W FIRETVERE - 2B RE
will not be repayable in the coming twelve months. The HARARR+ZEARNEE - BN
advances from minority shareholders are denominated in DERRRIBEAB T EEN -
Hong Kong dollars.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERBEMNIDERERIE K
advances from minority shareholders approximate their HEEEATFERS °
fair values.
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R
Number of
shares of
HK$0.10 each HK$'000
BREE0.108 T
Z BB FAET
Authorised 75 TE IR AN
R-_ZEZTWF
MmA—A -
—ZTRF
At 1st April, 2004, =A=+—Hk
31st March, 2005 —EERF
and 31st March, 2006 =A=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid BBITRBERA
At 1st April, 2004 R-ZZEZMFMY A/ —H 1,300,476,460 130,048
Exercise of share options 1718 R B IR 6,430,000 643
RZEZTREF
=A=+—8Hk
At 31st March, 2005 and at —ZEERF
31st March, 2006 =B=+—H 1,306,906,460 130,691

There was no movement in share capital during the year.

During last year, 6,430,000 shares of HK$0.10 each were
issued at HK$0.27 per share as a result of the exercise
of certain share options of the Company. The proceeds
from the issue of shares of HK$1,736,000 were used as
general working capital. All the new shares issued during
last year rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares.

REFRL WEMBAREE o

HRETARARBERENESF
JE#EITE - 6,430,0000% & i mE
BE0.10B T ZRMREFIRER
0.278BTL 2 B T LABETT o 384T
% 13 BT 15 %78 1,736,000/ T E
BIE—REBEES - TAREF
BT RN A 5 EER
ERNDEZEREER -



29.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 5th January
2001 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees and will expire on 4th
January, 2007 Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may at their discretion grant options to
eligible full or part-time employees, including executive
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company.

At 31st March, 2006, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted but not exercised under
the Scheme was 100,000,000, representing 7.65% of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at any
point in time but excluding shares issued pursuant to the
Scheme. No employee shall be granted a share option
which, if exercised in full, would result in such employee
becoming entitled to subscribe for more than 25% of the
aggregate number of shares for the time being issued
and issuable under the Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of
share options. The exercise period of the share options
granted under the Scheme shall be determined by the
Board of Directors when such options are granted,
provided that such period shall not end later than 4th
January 2007 being the expiry date of the Scheme. The
exercise price is determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of the
nominal value of the shares of the Company and 80% of
the average closing price of the Company's shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

29.

B

ARBZRBRET S ([Z5
EDDRENR-"TT—F—AHA
BB RBREMEMR  HTE
BNERBESRAERESR -
ZAt BN —TFTLF—AWA
& - RIBEZAE  ARBES
SHURNBRTEERIERIR
BEE (BREARRLEMEBA
AIZER) BRBBE  URBA

DA ©

RZZEERF=ZA=+—H &
Bt a8l B mARITE 2 RER
AREBZRDEHAB A
100,000,0008% - {5 R R %
BHzBE#TR7H7.65% ° RIEZ
ETEI MR SRR AT R
2D BT B BBARRER
TEEBREZTEmMBET2RG
ZBEEITRA10% ° WEAEE
BEREz2ABERENZETESE
Bz EERE 2RO BHBIR
BT EI BT RAET RO 2
#25% ' AT 5RZeEERT
ZHBE o RERE -

ERGZRBERESEREHA
HIE2VB AR MEtREZ
REBREZRERVET - RIE
At BRI 2 RE B 2T
DHEFENRLEBERBRE
RETE - MABHRERRITE
T REa%t8zEmE =%
TLFE-AWA - TEETDHA
NRAEFRGETE T FEERIA
TREZERRE  AREBRMDZ
EEHR N BEFE L AR A E
RPAZFHRTEZ80% °
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29.

EERNF=ZA=1T—HIEFE

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 29. RBERE (&)
Pursuant to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Rules BIBHAR S MBS EMHRAE
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange TEEZEBFT(RZZEZE—FAN
which became effective from 1st September, 2001, any A—BE®R  R=ZZEZE—FAN
share options granted after 1st September, 2001 must A—B&FR W 2 (AR08 M
comply with the provisions of the revised Chapter 17 ARFARKEBIIE+EEZIEX -
However, all share options granted prior to 1st September, A RZEE—F LA —HH
2001 will remain in full force and effect. EREZABRBRERKDAL
BTRANOEBA -
Save as disclosed above, the Company had not adopted BREXFIEEEINB T —
any share option schemes nor granted any share options FNA—H®E KXQR I EKE
to its employees after 1st September, 2001. AN r] 5 S R RE AT B S IR 1)
RERETEES -
The following tables disclose details of the Company'’s = (’E%%%)E’\\EZWT FER
share options held by employees (including Directors) and BZARRalREREZFBERE
movements in such holdings during both years: = EATE‘%TBZE% :
Balance Balance
outstanding Exercised Lapsed  outstanding
Option Exercise  at 1st April, during during at 31st March,
grant date price 2005 the year the year 2006
R-BRILF RZBEAE
MA-H RER RER ZA=1+-A8
ABRERLAH fEE B8 e F3 B8
HK$
BT
Directors 12th January, 2001 0.26 39,000,000 — — 39,000,000
£ “2%-5-A1ZH
28th August, 2001 0.30 36,000,000 — — 36,000,000
“EZ-FA\AZTNH
Total & 5t 75,000,000 - — 75,000,000
Employees 12th January, 2001 0.26 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000
& “EE-F-AfZH
28th August, 2001 0.30 10,000,000 — — 10,000,000
“EE-FNAZTNA
Total A &t 25,000,000 — — 25,000,000
Grand total £ 3t 100,000,000 — — 100,000,000




29. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 29. RERE (&)

Balance Balance
outstanding Exercised Lapsed outstanding
Option Exercise  at 1st April, during during at 31st March,
grant date price 2004 the year the year 2005
R-2RERE R=Z221%
mA-A RER RER =ZA=1+-H
ABRERLAH k@ 2B % b3 ZBE
HK$
B
Directors 12th January, 2001 0.26 39,000,000 — — 39,000,000
E% ZZ2-%-A+ZH
30th January, 2001 0.27 1,250,000 (1,250,000) = =
“E2T-£-A=+1H
28th August, 2001 0.30 36,000,000 — — 36,000,000
ZEE-£\AZ1+/\H
Total & 5t 76,250,000 (1,250,000) — 75,000,000
Employees 12th January, 2001 0.26 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000
E& “EE-%-ATZH
30th January, 2001 0.27 5,780,000 (5,180,000) (600,000) =
ZZ2-%£-f=1H
28th August, 2001 0.30 10,000,000 — — 10,000,000
ZEE-E\AZ1\H
Total A &t 30,780,000 (5,180,000) (600,000) 25,000,000

Grand total # 3t 107,030,000 (6,430,000) (600,000) 100,000,000




Notes to the Financial Statements
50 5% e 2% B

For the year ended 31st March, 2006 #HZE_-_ZEZEF=ZHA=1+—HIFE

29. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

29.

RBRE (&)

FrERE R 2 RBBEFEROT

Vesting period
B 5 R 7 HA &5

Date of grant
i B H

12th January, 2001 —
—ET-F—HA+=AH

28th August, 2001 —
—EE-FNA=+N\H

Exercise period Exercise price

TS TEE
HK$
AT
12th January, 2001 — 0.26
4th January 2007
—ET-F—A+=H -
—EE+F—AMWMA
28th August, 2001 - 0.30

4th January, 2007
—EE-FNAZF+NA -

—EE+F—ANAH

In accordance with the relevant transitional provisions
under HKFRS 2 as mentioned in Note 2 of the financial
statements, the Group has not applied HKFRS 2 to the
above share options which were granted before 7th
November, 2002. Accordingly, the financial impact of the
above share options granted is not recorded in the
Company’s or the Group's balance sheet until such time
as the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised
in the income statement in respect of the value of options
granted. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share over the
nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company
in the share premium account. Options which lapse or
are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from
the register of outstanding options.

30. RESERVES
The Group
The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movement
therein for the current and prior years are presented in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
47 and 48 of the financial statements.

30.

B RS SRR B s E2FT A 0 RIBEE
BB REERE 2R 2 BAB
B  AREBWEL A LR
ERERMNE B BERNZE2
5 AZERBREDIR-ZT
—Ft+—AtHAEH - Bt
A EBHRE 2 RERE 2B
EEEHARBRETENTIEE
AARBAEEBEERBBERA
%'w%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁz=%k%
ZEEERZRERASIH -
RIBRIREITE - FTEET Zh@
DEEARM 2 EERLREALRA
BTG - MEBRITEESR
RO EEZ D AR ABERR R
MR (B o 176 B HART R sk
TiEc RIERE B RITHERER
HEE M AR o

&
rEM
AEBEAREFZHEERBER

BEESET 2N EBRES47E
REASEB 7158 EEREEHEK -



30. RESERVES (Continued)

30. f@&fE (&)

The Company ¥ NN
Capital
Share Contributed redemption  Dividend  Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve  earnings Total
EX
RAEE RUERH BRERE KRERE RERF ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T FAT FET FET T
At 1st April, 2004 RZZTMEMA—H 385,807 244,734 515 16,274 185,105 832,435
Exercise of share options TR E 1,093 = = = = 1,093
Profit for the year KEE G - - — — 8,462 8,462
Prior year final dividend paid ~ ENEZERHRE — — — (16,274) — (16,274)
Adjustment of final dividend FARHZE_STNE
for the year ended ZA=t-RALEE
31st March, 2004 ZRBRE - - - - (5) (5)
Interim dividend paid BT HRS - - - —  (16325)  (16,325)
Final dividend proposed HE_ZZThA
for the year ended ZA=t-HLEE
31st March, 2005 ZERRRERE = = — 16,336 (16,336) =
At 31st March, 2005 “ZZRF=A=+—H 386,900 244,734 515 16,336 160,901 809,386
Loss for the year ME%L - - - - (1,221) (1,221)
Prior year final dividend paid B ZFRHAKS — — — (16,336) — (16,336)
Interim dividend paid B EBRE — — — — (16,336)  (16,336)
Final dividend proposed HE-TENE
for the year ended ZA=t-RHLEE
31st March, 2006 ZHRRAR RS - - - 16,336 (16,336) -
At 31st March, 2006 RZTE F=A=1+—H 386,900 244,734 515 16,336 127008 775,493
Notes: Bt -

(i) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended)
and Bye-Laws of the Company, the contributed surplus

account of the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due;

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be

less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued

share capital and share premium accounts.

(i) WEARE-NN-FQEDE
(RIEFT) RARB Z AR

Al - B ABBRA S
HERRRTIE
I 2 84 R H AR S
K

& TR
ATREREER
R AEH D

NEIEEAZBEEER
B BETRARRE
Rom Bz B AR -
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30. RESERVES (Continued) 30. @& (&)

The Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s reserves

AT (&)
HfaE o ()
0 (&)

EERR/ARA A DR TRE

available for distribution to shareholders were as follows: ZREBHET -
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Contributed surplus 'R A% 244,734 244,734
Dividend reserve & S 16,336 16,336
Retained earnings REB AR 127,008 160,901
388,078 421,971

(i)~ The contributed surplus of the Company represented the
difference between the nominal value of the Company's
shares issued in exchange for the value of net assets of
the underlying subsidiaries acquired.

(i) AnAzBRAHKRERRRABR
MARBMEBHERR 22
MEEFERBEITZARAR
MEEMERZZHE -

31. MINORITY INTERESTS 31. LERRER
Investments in certain subsidiaries were in the form of RETHBRAR ZIRETTRASE
equity and loans from the Group and other shareholders B REMREIZEFEERZENB
in accordance with respective percentages of equity NAIZBZBEE DL ARAER R
shareholding in these subsidiaries. Investments in the Bz AREL - LMERFEAIE
form of loans were comparatively more significant than H 2 ESBERUARAFEAED
those in the form of equity, so that the entire amounts ZIEEBERKXN At SEHER
were treated as quasi-capital. Under these circumstances, BERK - EZZEBERAT @ %%
the aggregate of minority shareholders’ equity and loan MEBAR 2 BERDEIRE 2’
investments were take into account in sharing the losses AEREFREBEFRNR - BN
incurred by these subsidiaries. The relevant amounts of DR RFIBBIEDHAR R B
minority shareholders’ shares of losses of subsidiaries ZEMBRAAIBE BB EL
included in the advances from minority shareholders are 419,716,000 T (ZEZF A
approximately HK$19,716,000 (2005: HK$20,378,000). £ : 20,378,000/ L) °

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEHER

Certain of the Group's property, plant and equipment with
an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$14
million (2005: HK$14 million) were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

AEEBNEEEFESHRY
14,000,000 L (ZZ TR F ¢
14,000,000 70) &5 T % -
TR B 28 I SR AR PR 4 T SR 1T DA
BROTZMERE -



33.

(a)

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 33. EEREEMS
Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees e 232 258
Basic salaries, allowances and HEAG2 - 2R
benefits in kind B A 9,784 9,041
Retirement benefits scheme RIKEFETE
contributions R 191 167
Bonus paid B TE4 6,041 4,955
16,248 14,421
Benefit from share options exercised 77 {# 52 B8 A 4 ~ U 2% 100
2006 Fees Other emoluments
we Ethi 2
Basic
salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme 2005
Name of director EE4E in kind contributions Bonus paid Total Total
EE R
2EE  BABA
ENEN  EfR  2ARL @it @3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#rn T#rn TEn TEn TEn TFiEr
Executive Director BUES
Mr. David LAM Kwing Chan gL E - 2,033 61 1,165 3,259 3,140
Mr. Alvin LAM Kwing Wai HEREE - 2,826 13 2,187 5,026 4137
Madam Rosita YUEN LAM KitWoo B2 A %+ - 1,213 28 742 1,983 1,861
Mr. Laurent LAM Kwing Chee R E - 1,659 48 805 2,512 2,404
Mr. TSANG Siu Hung Bk - 1,157 41 1,142 2,340 1414
Non-executive Director FYTES
Mr. Andrew LAM Ping Cheung* HRE R £ 80 - - - 80 80
Mr. Leo CHAN Fai Yue* BEERLE 80 - - - 80 80
Mr. John WONG Yik Chung* ERRRAE 12 - - - 72 18
Mr. CHIU Ming Hung* BBRETE - - - - - 80
Madam LAM TSANG Suk Yee LRERL - 896 - - 896 1,207
Total 232 9,784 191 6,041 16,248 14,421
2005 258 9,041 167 4,955 14,421
@ Independent Non-Executive Directors * BYENITES
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33. DIRECTORS’

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

AND EMPLOYEES’

ZEERNFZRA=1T—HIEFE

EMOLUMENTS 33.

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Name of director

Mr. TSANG Siu Hung

ExeE

2k if 5

ESkEEME (&)

(a) ESEME (&)

Benefit from
Share options exercised

The amount was not charged to the consolidated

income statement.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees during the year

included four (2005: four) directors, details of whose

remunerations are set out in note 33(a) above. The

remunerations paid to the five highest paid

TEREREZ WS
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT T
- 100
HHERERNGEE KSR
kinl
(b) EEME

AERER - B E T
ATEEmGEE -
S B R EHA KIS (=
EEHF : MAES - &

employees are as follows: UkxmEMAL 2SI
N
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Basic salaries, allowances and HAE £ « 2R
benefits in kind E Y& F 9,288 8,411
Retirement benefits scheme ROKAE R ET &I
contributions K 230 190
Bonus paid B IEL 6,415 5,685
15,933 14,286




33.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 33. EENEEME (&)

(Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEME (&)
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals Ut A7 & = B BN A = 2 B
were within the following bands: SRAAT -

No. of persons
AT AE

HK$E 7T 2006 2005
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 — 1
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 — 3,000,000 2 1
3,000,001 — 3,500,000 1 1
4,000,001 — 4,500,000 — 1
5,000,001 — 5,500,000 1 —
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34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

34.

During last year, the Group acquired the entire paid-up

registered capital of Sun Kai Yip (Shanghai) Industrial

Investment Co., Ltd. for a consideration of approximately
HK$65,123,000. This acquisition had been accounted for
by the acquisition method of accounting. The amount of

negative goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition

was HK$579,000.

WE—EHEQR

REBREFUIENES (L8)
TEREBRARZEDHEF
&R - R{E# AE65,123,000/%5
JT ° EZIEH&%%IEE?EMZ%@%
FEE  cBAREMEEZENE
Gk} ,%’97,%579,000/%7E o

2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT

NET ASSETS ACQUIRED FBACEERE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BMEEEREE — 134
Interests in associates B2 N AR — 25,079
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments  E b B ERTE - 7 & KT8 B — 469
Cash and cash equivalents RehkAeER — 42,038
Other creditors and accruals HuEMNERBERE BER — (2,018)
— 65,702
Negative goodwill BEE — (579)
Total consideration RERRE — 65,123

Satisfied by: ATRHI A AT -
Cash H& — 40,000
Other creditors and accruals EMENERIEBEREREE — 25,123
— 65,123

Net cash outflow/(inflow) arising WHEELEZBRERA
on acquisition: O ) JF 88 -

Cash consideration RERE — (40,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WHEMSzRERIACEE — 42,038
— 2,038

The subsidiary acquired during last year did not have any

significant impact on the Group's turnover, operating

results and cashflows for the year ended 31st March,

2005.

REFHKRE 2B AR ARE
EHE—_TTRAF=-A=1+—H
LFERAZERR KEXEER
REREVEEMNERATE -



35.

36.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 35. i 85 B B 4 &
During the year, the Group disposed of its entire interest AEBERFEAME S KEEER
in Realuck International Limited. NAZEE R -
During last year, the Group disposed of its entire interest REBREFMIEEFHEERR
in Kwok Cheung Oil Company Limited. NAZEE R -
The net assets of these subsidiaries at the dates of ZEMBARINRMBERBZEE
disposals are as follows: FEMAT
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FE&T
NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF i EEFE
Other debtors H th e W AR 18 (270) =
Minority interests LEH R R ER 270 —
Negative goodwill released EERZAEHE - (9)
Gain on disposal 8 2 WS - 9
Total consideration REEE — —
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. AEALTRS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with the associates:

Trade purchases BE

AERER - NEE LR S QR
TZRBWT -

2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
228,706 229,553

The trade purchases were carried out in the ordinary
course of business and at prices determined by reference
to prevailing market price.

ZEBENEARRBRENE
TRERSEN2R-ENTS
B -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BEALTRS (&)

Remuneration for key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management personnel during the year is as follows:

TEEBEAENHH

EENHMIBEERABRNFE
NEFH BT

THE GROUP
rEHE

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Short-term employee benefits REEEREF 18,785 16,934
Post-employment employee benefits R K (& & 18 7 258 231
19,043 17,165

Benefit from share options exercised

1710 o0 8 A 2 W 2k

— 100

The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel is determined or proposed by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

During the year, the Group rented a property owned by a
landlord in which the Director of the Company, Mr. Alvin
LAM Kwing Wai, had a beneficial interest. Total rental
expenses incurred for the year amounted to HK$960,000
(2005: HK$960,000).

Details of balances with associates at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 17.

In addition to the above, the Group also provided
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted
to associates as set out in note 37(c).

ESERTEREBEABNFMEF
MEEe2Z @B ALHRER
MZBERETEHER °

RAEEAN  AEEBRAAFE
EMMELERRA—EEESE
mEmIME AFEZHEY
4828 5960,0008 L (ZE2Z A
£ : 960,000/ 7T) °

RAEE B R ENRBEZHIEA
AIRHIINM T -

Eoh - REB IR AEBE QAW
RTINS R E MR R ER - 515
FI BT 5E37(c) °



37.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, the commitments and

contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial

statements are as follows:

(a) Contracted capital commitments

37. AERBREE

REER  REEMBHRREL
BRI AERIRBENT ¢

(a)

EREEHNZERMEIE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE KA F]
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHT
Acquisition of property, BAME BB
plant and equipment 128 I SR 208 307 = —
Capital contribution foran A&—IE 0] H &
available-for-sale
investment BE2RA 20,400 20,400 - —
20,608 20,707 - —
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EEHNEE
The Group as lessee KREFEREEA

At the balance sheet date,

the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

REEHAEE 2 Sl
i 2B AR T 51 A&
BUTZAERERE X

as follows: o
THE GROUP
KEH
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Within one year —F KX 2,266 810
In the second to fifth years F_EERF
inclusive (EEMFBEEA) 1,840 431
4,106 1,241

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group in respect of rented premises. Leases
are negotiated for an average term of 3 years with

fixed rentals.
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37 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$2,453,000 (2005: HK$2,254,000). The properties
rented out have committed tenants for the next 2
years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted
with tenants under the non-cancellable leases for
the following future minimum lease payments:

37. RERDIREE (E)

(b)

EERNEE (&)
AEBERHBA

FRzMEHRSKRAAR
2,453,000 L (ZEZT A
& 2,254,000 7T) ° %
EHAMEERKWFEAN
HBEBE &M -

REEH  AEBEEP
R Z AR HSEBE R T
SIHME 2 AR REHE S K
AR

THE GROUP
KEHE

2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Within one year —&R 1,292 2,245
In the second to fifth years F_EZFERF

inclusive (BEEMEBEERN) 266 725

1,558 2,970

The Company did not have any lease commitments at
the balance sheet date.
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37.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

37. AERIREE (&)

(Continued)
(c) Contingent liabilities (c) HAEE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH ¥ NN
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FERT F&T
Guarantees given in respect & |7l /2 & BX{5 4R 17
of banking facilities made Bl & M e L £ /R
available to:
— subsidiaries — MWBAF - — 161,246 181,207
— associates — Bt AR 143,735 98,045 124,235 78,545
— investee companies — RERQT - 13,014 - 13,014
143,735 111,059 285,481 272,766

At 31st March, 2006, the Group’s subsidiaries had
not utilised any of the banking facilities guaranteed
by the Company (2005: The extent of guaranteed
banking facilities utilised by the subsidiaries and
investee companies amounted to approximately
HK$7,547,000 and HK$10,950,000 respectively). The
extent of guaranteed banking facilities utilised by
the associates as at 31st March, 2006 amounted to
approximately HK$66,146,000 (2005: HK$46,661,000).

RZBEERF=RF=+—
H AEEZHBRET
BB EREM AR R ATE
RZBITHREREE (ZTZT
AF : (HBRARREER
AEBHAZEREBITRE
REE 7 B4 /7,547,000
7T % 10,950,000/ 7C) ° B
—EERF=ZA=+—
B BEARESHHZE
RBPETMEEEDN A
66,146,000 L (=TT
& : 46,661,000 70) °
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 38. EIKEFHFE

THE GROUP
rE&EH
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Retirement benefits schemes
contributions RIRE TG 8 1,720 1,716
Less: Forfeited contributions B BRI R (55) (22)
1,665 1,694

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”)
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance in December, 2000. The assets of these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Employees who are members of the ORSO Scheme prior
to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching
to the MPF Scheme, whereas, all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group and its employees
participating in the scheme are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the MPF
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. Except for
voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution under this
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.
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38.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued)

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising
from the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged
to the income statement represent contributions payable
to the schemes by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the schemes.

At the balance sheet date, there are no significant
forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees
leaving the retirement benefits scheme and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

38. RUKBAGE (&)
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